
April 20, 2015 
 

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, April 20, 2015, at 7:30 p.m. 
at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 17602. The 
meeting was called to order by Mr. David Buckwalter, Vice-Chairman and was followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. In addition to Mr. Buckwalter, supervisors present were: Mr. Glenn Eberly 
and Mr. Ethan Demme. Also present was Mr. Ralph Hutchison, Township Manager.   Absent 
were Mr. John Blowers and Mr. Corey Meyer 
 
The following persons signed in as being present in the audience: 
  
Lynn Commero, representing Lancaster Newspapers 
Roger Fry, 21 South Hershey Avenue, Leola PA, representing Ronks School 
David M. King, 141A North Ronks Road, representing Ronks School 
Nathan L. Stoltzfus, 118 North Ronks Road, representing Ronks School 
Eli J. Beiler, 103A North Ronks Road, representing Ronks School 
David B. Stoltzfus Jr, 36 South Soudersburg Road, representing Ronks School 
 
Executive Session April 20, 2015 
 
Vice Chairman Buckwalter announced that the Board held an Executive Session prior to the 
scheduled meeting to discuss a legal issue. 
 
Minutes of the April 6, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
Vice Chairman Buckwalter asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the 
minutes of the April 6, 2015 regular meeting as prepared. Mr. Eberly stated that a name needed 
to be corrected under Other Business Item C from Martin Horst to Marlin Horst. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Eberly to approve the minutes with the correction of the name 
Marlin Horst.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and the motion was passed by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 
Bills: 
 
Vice Chairman Buckwalter indicated that bills to be paid from various funds in the amount of 
$427,552.78 were presented for payment. Mr. Buckwalter discussed some of the larger items 
included in that amount was a payment in the amount of $210,898.17 to City of Lancaster for the 
first quarter 2015 sewer flow charges and a payment in the amount of $38,425.00 to 
Susquehanna Municipal Trust for the second quarter Workers Compensation premium. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Demme and seconded by Mr. Eberly to approve the payment of the 
bills as listed in the amount of $427,552.78.  The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Old Business: 
 
None 



 
New Business 
 

a. Ronks Parochial School Land Development Plan #15-12: 141A North Ronks Road  
 
Vice Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. Roger Fry was 
present. 
 
Mr. Fry, Fry Surveying, is present with members from the school board for the Ronks School.  
He introduced Eli Beiler, David Stoltzfus and David King.  He stated that the applicant is 
proposing to build a one room school house on David King’s property.  He reviewed the David 
Miller Associates letter dated April 17, 2015. He discussed the waivers and modifications the 
applicant is requesting including the waiver of the preliminary plan submission requirement, 
modification of the clear sight triangle requirement, deferrals for improvements along Ronks 
Road for curbs and sidewalks.  He reviewed items under the subdivision and land development 
including the use of a privy on the lot, making plans more legible, relabeling of the right-of way, 
and financial security.  He then reviewed the stormwater management section stating that most 
of the items are being addressed.  He stated that the Lancaster County Planning Commission 
meeting was cancelled.  He reviewed staff comments from the Lancaster County Planning 
Commission draft including the applicant record a fully executed lease agreement between the 
property owner and the lessee prior to issuance of permits, ensure stormwater runoff from the 
site will not detrimentally flow onto adjacent properties, plans should include the location of a 
suitable well location and its 100 foot protection radius, plans should note location for the 
proposed sewage holding tank and provide written notification from the Lancaster County 
Conservation District that the Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan is either acceptable or that 
approval is not required. He stated that they have received the approval letter from the Lancaster 
County Conservation District.  He stated that the Planning Commission did not have these 
waivers in their hands but they were sent a verbal request.   
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the Land Development Plan #15-12 for Ronks Parochial 
School: 141A North Ronks Road conditioned upon the Township Engineers review comments 
and permission for the privy and Lancaster Planning Commission comments except on the 
proposed well.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Other Business:  
 

a. Public Hearing re: Ordinance to Adopt an Official Map 
 
Vice Chairman Buckwalter opened the public hearing to discuss the ordinance to adopt an 
official map. 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that the Board authorized staff to advertise an ordinance that if adopted 
would adopt an official map for the Township.  He stated that the ordinance was prepared by the 
Township solicitor, advertised, sent to planning partners and the Township received review 
comments from the County Planning Commission and Upper Leacock Township.  He stated that 
the purpose of an official map is it identifies public features that the Township already has in 



place and shows future placement of things such as road connectors, trails, parks, paths and other 
desirable public facilities. 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that if a property owners wants to develop their property and one of these 
improvements is shown to be on or across their property they will need to make provisions for 
that and/or the Township is given the opportunity to acquire what is necessary to make that 
improvement before its developed or to work with the developer to incorporate into development 
plans.   
 
Mr. Hutchison discussed some of the concepts on the map such as a trail on the goat path, 
additional trail network in the Route 30 corridor, parallel road facility south of Route 30 with 
some connector roads.  He stated that the map also includes placement of existing parks, schools, 
fire houses and municipal buildings.   
 
The hearing was opened to public questions.  A question was asked if the map changes the 
zoning.  Mr. Hutchison stated that the map does not change any zoning.  Mr. Eberly asked if the 
map can changed. Mr. Hutchison stated that it can be done but it would have to go a similar 
process.  Mr. Buckwalter stated that he thinks it will probably need updated periodically.   
 
Vice Chairman Buckwalter closed the public hearing on the official map. 
 

b. Ordinance to Adopt an Official Map 
 

Mr. Eberly asked about the effect of the Amish school to the map.  Mr. Demme stated that the 
official map is only for public spaces so an Amish school is not a public space. He also stated 
that we have semi-public spaces such as colleges that are not on the map.  Mr. Buckwalter asked 
if modifications can be made without advertising the ordinance again.  Mr. Hutchison stated he 
did not believe so that it would need to be advertised again and go through the process again.  He 
agreed with Mr. Demme stating that this is to show public spaces.  He stated that if the Board 
would find it helpful they can prepare a map with both public and private schools.  Mr. Demme 
asked about the HACC walking trail that HACC has stated is open to the public and how to make 
it official.  Mr. Hutchison stated that he would have to review the plan.  Mr. Demme also 
mentioned the trails in Greenfield not being on the map.  Mr. Hutchison stated that HACC is a 
public entity but Greenfield is not but the Township could pursue adding those trails in the 
future.  
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to adopt the ordinance to adopt official map for East Lampeter 
Township.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Ordinance #311 
 

c. Award of Contract re: Installation of Traffic Responsive System – Lincoln Highway East 
Corridor Traffic Signals 

 
Mr. Hutchison explained that the Township applied for funding through the PennDOT program 
called the Automatic Red Light Enforcement Grant Program.  He stated that funds are available 
to make improvements to traffic signals and other things.  The Township applied to the program 



to get funding to design and install a traffic responsive system along the Lincoln Highway 
corridor from Greenfield Road to Route 896.  He stated that it went through the design process 
by the Township traffic engineer Grove Miller and then went to PennDOT for a permit and then 
was placed for bid.  He explained that the engineering work and the installation of the hardware 
and software into the system will be covered by the $75,000 grant.  He explained that the 
engineering part was completed for a cost of $25,000 and now the Township needs to get the 
system installed.  He stated that the Township received two bids: one from Telco, Inc. and one 
from C.M. High.  He stated that Telco submitted the lowest bid amount of $46,086 and 
recommends the Board award the contract to Telco, Inc. in the amount of$46,086.   
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that recently the Township has been having difficulty with the fiber optic 
communication in the system between the American Music Theatre intersection and the South 
Willowdale Drive intersection so the Township has asked PennDOT to allow the Township to do 
a change order to the contract to allow the contractor to do repair work with the remaining grant 
funds.  He stated that it would be presented for the Board if that is a possibility. 
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the contract with Telco, Inc. for the installation of the 
Traffic Responsive System in the amount of $46,086.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it 
was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

d. Award of Contract for In Place Paving Materials 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that this is for a paving project for Starlight Drive and Sunlight Circle.  The 
Township received three bids: one from Highway Materials, one from Pennsy Supply and one 
from Long’s Paving.  He stated that Highway Materials submitted the lowest bid amount of 
$73,802.37.  He recommends the Board award the contract to Highway Materials in the amount 
of $73,802.37. 
 
Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the contract with Highway Materials for the In Place 
Paving Materials in the amount of $73,802.37.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was 
passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

e. Appeal of Zoning Hearing Board Decision re: Lancaster Auto Detail Building Sign – 
Lincoln Highway East 

 
Vice Chairman Buckwalter stated that the Zoning Hearing Board at the last meeting approved a 
sign that exceeds the Township ordinance.  He stated that the Boards only recourse is to 
challenge the decision in court if the Board feels the decision is in error. 
 
Mr. Eberly and Mr. Demme both stated that they feel it would be worth appealing the decision 
and working with the owner to negotiate a settlement that is acceptable to both parties.   
Mr. Buckwalter stated that the only recourse is to authorize an appeal. 
 
Mr. Demme made a motion to authorize staff to appeal of the Zoning Hearing Board Decision re: 
Lancaster Auto Detail Building Signage.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 



 
Public Comment: 
 
None 
 
Adjournment: 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Eberly and seconded by Mr. Demme to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, May 11, 2015 beginning at 7:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Ralph Hutchison 






























